August 1, 2019

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited
Exchange Plaza, P.J. Towers,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 051 Mumbai - 400001
Dear Sirs,

We wish to inform you that the 33™ Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) of the Company will
be held on Monday, August 26, 2019 at 3:00 P.M. at Crowne Plaza Today, Sector-29,
National Highway-8, Gurgaon-122001. In this regard, we enclose a copy of the Notice of the
33" AGM (alongwith Annual Report for the financial year 2018-19), being despatched to the
members of the Company.

In terms of Regulation 42 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 91 of the Companies Act,
2013 including rules made thereunder, the Register of Members / Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from Tuesday, August 20, 2019 to Monday, August 26, 2019
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of AGM and determining eligibility of shareholders for
dividend, subject to the approval of members at the AGM.

The Dividend on equity shares @ Rs. 3 per equity share of Re.1 each, as recommended by the
Board of Directors, if declared at the AGM, will be paid on or before Tuesday, September 24,
2019 to those members whose names appear as:

(a) Beneficial Owners as at the end of business hours on Monday, August 19, 2019 in the
list of Beneficial Owners to be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, in respect of shares held in electronic
form; and

(b) Members in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to valid share
transfers in physical form lodged with the Company on or before Monday, August 19,
2019.

Kindly take the same on record.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For Kajaria Ceramics Limited

<~ \«-—-, -¢ Company Secr

Encl.: as above

Corporate Office :J1/B1 {Extn.), Mohan Co - op Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044, Ph +591-11-26946409 | Fax: +91-11~ 26946407
Regd Office: SF-11, Second Floor, IMD Regent Plaza, Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon-122001, Haryana, Ph.: +91-124-4081781
CIN Neo. : L26924HR1985PLC056150, E-maik: info@kajariaceramics.com | Web.: www.kajariaceramics.com




KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

[CIN: L26924HR1985PLC056150]
Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza, Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122001 Phone: +91-124-4081281
Corporate Office: J-1/B-1 (Extn.), Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044
Phone: +91-11-26946409 Fax: +91-11-26946407
E-mail: investors@kajariaceramics.com Website: www.kajariaceramics.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 33" (Thirty Third) Annual General Meeting of the members of Kajaria Ceramics Limited (the
‘Company’) will be held on Monday, 26" August, 2019 at 3.00 p.m. at Crowne Plaza Today, Sector-29, National Highway-8,
Gurgaon, Haryana-122001, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (including Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements) for the financial year ended 31* March, 2019 and Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company including the Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2019, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2019,
notes to financial statements, reports of the Board and Auditors’ thereon and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company including the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2019, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow
statement for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2019, notes to financial statements, along with the Auditors’ report
thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2.  Todeclare adividend of Rs. 3/- per equity share:

“RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of Rs. 3/- per equity share of Re. 1/- each fully paid up for the financial year 2018-19 be
and is hereby approved and declared.”

3.  Toappointa Director in place of Mr. Dev Datt Rishi (DIN: 00312882), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting
and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in
force), Mr. Dev Datt Rishi (DIN: 00312882), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be
and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

Special Business:
4.  Tore-appoint Mrs. Sushmita Singha (DIN: 02284266) as an Independent Director of the Company
To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOVLED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
read with the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the Company and on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee & the
Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Sushmita Singha (DIN: 02284266), Independent Director, whose term of office
shall expire on 29" March, 2020 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of
the Act from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company for the second term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 30" March, 2020 upto 29" March,
2025 and who shall not be liable to be retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorised to do such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may deem necessary.”

Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza, By Order of the Board
Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon, For Kajaria Ceramics Limited
Haryana-122001

Ram Chandra Rawat
Place: New Delhi COO (A&T) & Company Secretary

Date: 10" May, 2019 [FCS No. 5101]



NOTES:

1.

10.

The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), in respect of
Special Business to be transacted at the 33" Annual General Meeting (the ‘AGM’ or ‘Meeting’), is annexed and forms part
of this Notice.

Brief resume and other particulars of Mr. Dev Datt Rishi and Mrs. Sushmita Singha, pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’) read with the
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are annexed
herewith as AnnexureA.

AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PROXY SO APPOINTED SHALL NOT HAVE ANY
RIGHT TO SPEAKAT THE MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF THE MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) IN NUMBER AND
HOLDING, IN AGGREGATE, NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY, CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. HOWEVER, A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, MAY APPOINT SINGLE PERSON AS
PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER MEMBER. A PROXY FORM IS
ENCLOSED WITH THIS NOTICE.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting are
requested to send to the Company a Certified True Copy of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney authorizing their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Proxy form(s) must be duly completed, signed and stamped. Incomplete proxy forms are considered to be as invalid and
the proxy so appointed shall not be entitled to vote on the resolution(s) in the AGM. A proxy holder needs to show his identity
at the time of attending the Meeting. Further, in case, if the Company receive multiple proxies for the same holding of a
member, the proxy which is dated last shall be considered valid, if it is not dated or bear the same date without mentioning
specific time then all the proxies so send by the member shall be considered to be as invalid. During the period beginning 24
hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a member
would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company provided that not less
than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company.

Members, Proxies and Authorised Representative(s) are requested to bring the duly filled and signed Attendance Slips
(enclosed), complete in all respect at the Venue of AGM in order to enable us to register your attendance at the venue of the
AGM. Members are requested to bring their Folio No. / DP ID - Client ID along with their shareholding to enable us to
provide the Attendance Slips for your signature and participation at the Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only the member whose name appears to be first will be entitled to vote.

Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members / Proxy holders and in
possession of valid attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the Meeting. The Company reserves
its right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending the AGM.

As per the provision of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making Nomination is available for the members in respect of
their shareholding in the Company. The members are requested to submit the complete and signed form SH-13 with their
Depository Participant (‘DP’) who holds the shares in dematerialized form and those who are holding physical shares shall
send the same to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent - MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, F-65, 1* Floor, Okhla
Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi 110020 (the ‘RTA’).

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify/send the following to the RTA of the Company:
i) Any change or update in their mailing address;

ii)  Particulars of their PAN, Bank account & e-mail ids in case the same have not been registered with the
Company;

iiil Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names are requested to send all
share certificates for consolidation into single folio.

Further, please note that Members holding equity shares in electronic form are requested to contact to their
respective DP with whom they are maintaining the Demat accounts for updation in address, e-mail ids, Bank
details, Bank mandate, ECS mandate, etc.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Pursuant to the amendment in Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, with effect from 1 April, 2019, any request for transfer of shares held in physical form shall not
be processed, except in case of transmission or transposition of shares or in case of transfer deed(s) once lodged
with the Company prior to 1* April, 2019 and returned/rejected due to deficiency in the documents. Thus, the
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialised their shareholding, as the shares of the
Company are under compulsory demat trading.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act
and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act
will be available forinspection by the members at the AGM.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement, are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on working days and upto & including the date of AGM and the
copies thereof shall also be made available for inspection at the Corporate Office of the Company.

ARoute Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue of the AGM is annexed with the Notice of
AGM and is also available on the website of the Company.

The Registers of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 20" August,
2019 to Monday, 26" August, 2019 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the purpose of the AGM and determining names
of the members eligible for dividend on equity shares, if declared.

The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company (Rs. 3/- per equity share of Re. 1/- each), if
declared at the AGM, will be paid on or before the 30" day from the date of declaration, to those members:

a) Whose names appear as Beneficial Owners in the list of Beneficial Owners as at the end of business hours on
Monday, 19" August, 2019 to be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited (‘(NSDL’) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) in respect of shares held in electronic form; and

b)  Whose names appear as member in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to the valid transfers
in physical forms lodged with the Company and the RTA of the Company on or before Monday, 19" August, 2019.

Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrant for the financial year 2011-12 and/or the dividend warrants issued
for any subsequent financial years so far, are requested to make their claim to the Company / the RTA of the Company or
send an email to investors@kajariaceramics.com or helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com. However, all the unclaimed
dividend pertaining to the financial years before the financial year 2011-12 have been transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) as per the provision of Sections 124 & 125 of the Act. Members may please note that no claim
shall lie against the Company in respect of dividend which remains unclaimed/ unpaid for a period of seven years from the
dateitis lying in the unpaid dividend account.

Unclaimed dividend information is available on the website of IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in and also on the website of the
Company viz. www.kajariaceramics.com

The Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof (the ‘IEPF Rules’), amongst other matters, provide for transfer of the
shares, in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven or more consecutive years, to IEPF Authority
and the shares shall be credited to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority, within 30 days of such shares becoming due to be
transferred to the IEPF.

Accordingly, the Company had transferred 4,17,094 equity shares of Re. 1/- each, in respect of which dividend had not
been claimed by the shareholders for 7 consecutive years or more (i.e. During the financial year 2018-19: 53,362 equity
shares and during the financial year 2017-18: 3,63,732 equity shares), to IEPF Authority.

Pursuant to the IEPF Rules, the unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2011-12 will become due for transfer to the IEPF
Authority on12" August, 2019 (i.e. Due date) and accordingly, both the unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares will
be transferred to the IEPF Authority within 30 days from the Due date.

Further, in compliance of the IEPF Rules, the Company has communicated individually to the concerned Members and
also through newspaper advertisement on 1% May, 2019 in respect to transfer of shares against which the dividend has not
been paid/claimed by such Member for 7 consecutive years (F.Y. 2011-12 to 2017-18). The Company has uploaded the
details of such Members and shares due to be transferred to IEPF Authority on its website i.e. www.kajariaceramics.com.
The Members may kindly note that both the unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares transferred to IEPF Authority
including all benefits accruing on such shares, if any, can be claimed back by them from IEPF Authority after following the
procedure prescribed by the IEPF Rules.

The Members are requested to claim their unclaimed/unpaid dividend well within the permissible time period.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) by every participant in the securities
market. However, the members having their shareholding in the Demat form are requested to provide their PAN details to
their respective DPs and those who have shares in physical mode are requested to provide their PAN details to the
Company or the RTA of the Company.

(a) The electronic copy of the Annual Report with the Notice of the AGM (alongwith Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and
Route Map to the AGM Venue) for the financial year ended 31* March, 2019 is being sent to all the members whose
email IDs are registered with the Company / DPs unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same.
For Members, who have requested for physical copy or who have not registered their email address, physical copies
of the Annual Report with the Notice of the AGM (alongwith Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map to the AGM
Venue) s being sent through permitted mode.

(b) To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the members who are yet to register / update their email address with the
Company or DPs are once again requested to register / update the same for receiving the Notices, Annual
Reports and other documents / communications through electronic mode.

Certificate from Statutory Auditors of the Company that the Kajaria Ceramics Employee Stock Option Plan, 2015 has been
implemented in accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, shall be placed at the
AGM.

The Notice of AGM (alongwith Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map to the AGM Venue) and the Annual Report for
the year ended 31* March, 2019 are available at the Company’s website www.kajariaceramics.com. The Notice of the AGM
is also available on www.evoting.nsdl.com

The Company has dedicated E-mail ID, i.e. investors@kajariaceramics.com for members to mail their queries or lodge
complaints, if any. We will endeavor to reply to your queries at the earliest.

Members desirous of getting any information about the Financial Statements and operations of the Company are
requested to address their queries to the Company Secretary at the Corporate Office of the Company at J-1/B-1 (Extn.),
Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044, ten (10) days before the date of the AGM
enabling the Company to keep the information ready.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and SS-2 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including amendments thereto), the Company is pleased to provide facility to the members to exercise
their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting by electronic means and the
items of business given in the Notice of the AGM may be transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting vote
through e-voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (the ‘remote e-voting’) will be provided by National
Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’).

The facility of the remote e-voting through electronic means is as an alternate to all members to enable them to cast their
votes electronically instead of casting their vote physically at the Meeting. The facility for voting through Ballot Paper shall
also be made available at the AGM and the member attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting
shall be able to exercise their vote at the Meeting through Ballot Paper atthe AGM.

The remote e-voting period commences at 9:00 a.m. (IST) on Friday, 23" August, 2019 and ends at 5:00 p.m. (IST) on
Sunday, 25" August, 2019 During this period, members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on Cut-off date of Monday, 19" August, 2019 (‘Cut-off date’), may cast their vote by remote e-
voting. No remote e-voting shall be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the remote e-voting module shall be
disabled for voting upon expiry of the aforesaid period. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The instruction for e-voting are as under:

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of ‘Two Steps’ which are as under:

Step - 1 - Process tologin to NSDL e-voting website:

Please visit at the e-voting website of NSDL, either on a personal computer or on a mobile and open the web browser by
typing the URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon ‘Login’ which is available under ‘Shareholders’
section.

Anew screen will open. Please enter User ID, password and Verification code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, If you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you can proceed
to cast your vote electronically.



(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or YourUserIDis:

CDSL) or Physical

For Members who hold shares in Demataccount | 8character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

with NSDL Forexample, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******,

then User ID is IN300***12******

For Members who hold shares in Demat account | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

with CDSL For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12
then User [D ig q2%****#sskssinx
For Members holding shares in Physical Form EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the Company

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456,
the User ID is 101456001***

Password details are given below:
(a) If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

(b) If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which is
communicated to you at your registered E-mail ID as specified in the demat account consisting of ‘pdffile’.

The password for opening the ‘pdf file’ is your 8 digit Client ID for NSDL account and the last 8 digit Client ID for CDSL
account, if you are holding shares in demat form and if you are holding shares in physical form, then your folio number is
your password. The ‘pdffile’ contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘Initial password’.

If your email Id is not registered with the Company, your initial password will be communicated to you on your postal
address.

Once you enter the ‘initial password’, the system will force you to change your password.
Ifyou are unable to retrieve the password or have not received the ‘initial password’ or have forgotten your password:

. Click on ‘Forget User Details/Password?’, option available at www.evoting.nsdl.com (if your demat account is with
NSDL/CDSL)

. Click on ‘Physical User Reset password?’, option available at www.evoting.nsdl.com (if you are holding shares in
physical form)

. If you are still unable to retrieve your password through above said options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in, mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered
address.

Login can also be made using OTP (One Time Password) for casting the vote on the e-voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to ‘Terms and Conditions’ by selecting on the check box.

Now, click on ‘Login’ and the Home page of e-voting will open.

Step - 2 —Process to cast vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system:

@)

v)
(vi)
(vii)

After successful login at Step -1, you will be able to see the Home Page of e-voting. Click on e-voting. Then click on Active
Voting Cycles.

Now, you will be able to see all the companies ‘EVEN’ in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active
status.

Select ‘EVEN’ (Electronic Voting Even Number) of Kajaria Ceramics Limited.
Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish
to cast your vote and click on ‘Submit’ and also ‘Confirm’ when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message ‘Vote cast successfully’ will be displayed.
You can also take printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on a resolution, you will be not allowed to modify your vote.

®)



General Guidelines for e-voting:

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format)
of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority Letter, etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutiniser through e-mail at rupesh@cacsindia.com or
investors@kajariaceramics.com or admin@mecsregistrars.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password.
In such an event, you will need to go through the ‘Forgot User Details/Password?’ or ‘Physical User Reset Password?’
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

The Voting Rights (for voting through remote e-voting as well as polling through Ballot paper) shall be reckoned on the paid
up value of the shares registered in the name of the members as on the Cut- off date i.e. Monday, 19" August, 2019.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the Cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting at the AGM through
Ballot paper. However, a person who is not a member as on the Cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose
only.

Any person, who acquire shares of the Company and become a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of the
AGM and holding shares as on the Cut-off date i.e. Monday, 19" August, 2019, may obtain the login ID and password by
sending a request (alongwith Name, Folio No./DP ID-Client ID, as the case may be and shareholding) at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com or admin@mcsregistrars.com

In case of any queries connected with voting by electronic means, you may refer the frequently Asked Question (FAQs) for
Shareholders and the remote e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL, Trade World, A Wing, Fourth and Fifth Floor,
Kamala Mills Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai- 400013 through email at evoting@nsdl.co.in or on Toll Free No. 1800-222-
990.

The members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. remote e- voting or voting through Ballot Paper at the AGM Venue. In
case of voting by both the modes, vote cast through e-voting will be considered final and voting through Ballot paper will not
be considered. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting.

Please note that the members who have exercised their right to vote through electronic means as above shall not be eligible
to vote by way of Ballot Paper at the AGM, but they may attend the AGM. Vote cast by way of Ballot paper together with vote
cast through remote e-voting shall be counted for the purpose of passing of resolution(s). No voting by show of hands will be
allowed atthe AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Rupesh Agarwal (Membership No.: ACS 16302, CP No.: 5673)
or failing him Mr. Shashikant Tiwari (Membership No. ACS 28994, CP No.: 13050), Partners, M/s Chandrasekaran
Associates, Company Secretaries, having its office situated at 11F, Pocket - IV, Mayur Vihar, Phase- 1, Delhi- 110091, as
the Scrutiniser to scrutinize the voting through remote e- voting and Ballot paper process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the
assistance of Scruitiniser, by use of the Ballot paper(s) for all those eligible members/proxies who are present at the AGM
but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutiniser shall immediately after the conclusion of the Meeting, will first count the votes, cast at the Meeting and
thereafter unlock the vote cast through remote e-voting in the presence of atleast two witnesses not in the employment of
the Company and shall make, within the time permissible under the applicable laws, a consolidated Scrutiniser’s report of
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him, who shall counter sign the
same.

The results declared alongwith the report of the Scruitiniser shall be placed in the website of the Company
www.kajariaceramics.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of results by the Chairman or a
person authorised by him and the results shall also be communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. The results will also be displayed at the Registered Office as well as the Corporate Office of the Company.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions set out in the Notice of the AGM shall be deemed to be
passed at the 33 AGM scheduled to be held on Monday, 26" August, 2019.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with the other applicable laws/regulations, Mrs. Sushmita
Singha (DIN: 02284266) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five consecutive years
effective from 30" March, 2015. Thus, her existing tenure will expire on 29" March, 2020.

Section 149(10) of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’) provides
that an Independent Director shall hold office for a term upto five consecutive years on the Board of a company but shall be
eligible for re-appointment for another term upto five consecutive years on passing of a special resolution by the company. An
Independent Director will not be liable to retire by rotation. Regulation 17(1)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations”) also provides regarding the requirements to have atleast one
Independent Woman Director on the Board of the company.

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) consider that the continued association of Mrs. Sushmita Singha would be of
immense benefit to the Company and itis desirable to continue to avail her services as the Independent Director of the Company.
The Board has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, carried out the evaluation of her
performance, in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and fulfillment of criteria specified
under the Listing Regulations read with the Act and accordingly, the Board expressed its satisfaction with her performance and
contribution to the Company in the capacity of the Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received notice in writing from the member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mrs.
Sushmita Singha for the office of Director of the Company. She is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and the Company has also received a declaration from Mrs. Sushmita Singha that she meets the criteria of
independence as specified under Section 149(6) read with Schedule IV of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) & 25(8) of the Listing
Regulations and her consent to act as an Independent Director. In the opinion of the Board, she fulfils the criteria/conditions
specified in the Act read with the Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations for her re-appointment as an Independent
Director of the Company and she is independent of the management of the Company.

Keeping in view of her rich experience and contributions throughout her tenure & meeting the criteria of independence and on the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board considered the continuity of her directorship as
justified and recommends to re-appoint Mrs. Sushmita Singha as an Independent Director of the Company for second term to be
effective from 30" March 2020 to 29" March, 2025 and who shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

The terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mrs. Sushmita Singha will be available for inspection by the members of the
Company at the Registered Office and the Corporate Office of the Company, during the working hours on working days upto and
including the date of 33 Annual General Meeting of the Company. The said terms and conditions are also available at the
Company’s website www.kajariaceramics.com. The disclosures prescribed under the applicable provisions of the Listing
Regulations read with the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India are provided in Annexure-A of this Notice.

As per the circular of BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited relating to the ‘Enforcement of SEBI Orders
regarding appointment of Directors by the listed companies dated 20" June, 2018, Mrs. Sushmita Singha is not debarred from
holding the office of Director pursuant to any SEBI order or any other such statutory authority. Accordingly, the Board
recommends the resolution in relation to re-appointment of Mrs. Sushmita Singha as the Independent Director of the Company,
for the approval by the members of the Company, by way of Special Resolution.

Mrs. Sushmita Singha and her relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of
this Notice with regard to her re-appointment. None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Special Resolution, except to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company, if any.

Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza, By Order of the Board
Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon, For Kajaria Ceramics Limited
Haryana-122001

Ram Chandra Rawat
Place: New Delhi COO (A&T) & Company Secretary

Date: 10" May, 2019 [FCS No. 5101]



Annexure-A

Information pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 read with the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ('SS-2') issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of Indiaregarding the Directors proposed to be re-appointed:

Name of Directors

Mr. Dev Datt Rishi (DIN: 00312882)

Mrs. Sushmita Singha (DIN: 02284266)

Date of Birth

5" August, 1949

13" May 1964

Age as on 31* March, 2019

70 Years

55 years

Date of first appointment on the
Board of the Company

14" January, 2015

30" March, 2015

Qualification

B.Sc. (Engineering), Chemical Hons. Graduate,
Diploma in Management

Post graduate in English from Patna University,
Diploma in Urban Town Planning from the Human
Settlement Management Institute (HSMI), New Delhi
and a Certification Course in Enhancement of
Managerial Capability from the Indian Institute of
Management (IIM), Lucknow.

Experience

He is an eminent technical professional having
experience in a wide spectrum of industries like
Chemicals, Fertilizers, Pesticides and Ceramics. He
was associated with Kajaria Ceramics since inception
in January 1987 when the first tile plant was conceived
at Sikandrabad. For more than 20 years, he managed
all operations meticulously. Under his dynamic
leadership, the Company successfully carried out
various expansions. His knowledge and techniques
have contributed to production of international
standards quality tiles. He has rich experience in the
field of production, quality control, R&D, technology
transfer, standardization, projects, training and
organization development, etc.

She has over 30 years of experience in the industry,
international organizations and development sector.
She has held various posts / assignments in various
organisations including PHD Chamber of Commerce
and Industry, Sulabh International Social Service
Organisation, UN Task Force and took various
assignments for Government of India. Presently, she
is the President of MA. (My Anchor Foundation), an
NGO working in development sector in India. She is
also an honorary member of BRICS Chamber of
Commerce.

She also serves on the Boards of other companies.

Terms and conditions of re-
appointment

Mr. Dev Datt Rishi will continue to be the Non-
Executive Director of the Company.

As mentioned in explanatory statement of the Notice.

Remuneration sought and last
drawn

Remuneration Sought:

No remuneration will be payable except sitting fees for
attending the Board and its Committee meetings.
Remuneration last drawn as Non-executive Director:
As mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration Sought:

No remuneration will be payable except sitting fees
for attending the Board and its Committee meetings.
Remuneration last drawn as an Independent
Director:

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

Shareholding in the Company as on
31*March, 2019

624 equity shares

NIL

Relationship with other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

He is not related to other Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company

She is not related to other Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company

Committee of the Board of Directors
of other Public Limited Companies as
on 31*March, 2019*

Nos. of Board Meetings attended 6 (Six) 6 (Six)

during the financial year 2018-19

Directorships held in other Public NIL * Ginni International Limited

Limited Companies including other * Greenpanel Industries Limited

Listed Companies as on 31* March,

2019

Chairmanships / Memberships- of the NIL She is the Chairperson of the Stakeholders
Committee of Board of Directors of Relationship Committee of the Company

the Company as on 31* March, 2019*

Chairmanships / Memberships of the NIL NIL

Note:

*The Committee of Board of Directors includes only Audit committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza,
Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon,

Haryana-122001

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10" May, 2019

By Order of the Board
For Kajaria Ceramics Limited

Ram Chandra Rawat
COO (A&T) & Company Secretary
[FCS No. 5101]
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KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

[CIN: L26924HR1985PLC056150]
Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza, Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122001 Phone: +91-124-4081281
Corporate Office: J-1/B-1 (Extn.), Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044
Phone: +91-11-26946409 Fax: +91-11-26946407
E-mail: investors@kajariaceramics.com Website: www.kajariaceramics.com

FORM NO. MGT-11

Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered address

E-mail ID

Folio No./Client ID-DP ID*:

I/We, being the member(s) holding Equity Shares of KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED, hereby appoint:
1 Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature: Or failing him
2 Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature: Or failing him
3 Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, to be
held on Monday, 26" August, 2019 at 3.00 p.m. at Crowne Plaza Today, Sector-29, National Highway-8, Gurgaon, Haryana-122001 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Resolution(s) Vote (Optional, see Note 4)
No. (Please mention no. of shares)
For | Against | Abstain

Ordinary Business

1 To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements (including Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company for the financial year ended on 31*
March, 2019 and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
2 To declare a dividend of Rs. 3/- per equity share
3 To re-appoint Mr. Dev Datt Rishi (DIN:00312882), who retires by rotation
Special Business
4 To re-appoint Mrs. Sushmita Singha (DIN: 02284266) as an Independent Director of the
Company
Affix
Signed this day of 2019 Revenue
Stamp of
Signature of Proxy holder(s) Signature of Member Re. 1/-
Notes:
1. This Proxy Form, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than
forty-eight hours before the commencement of the 33 Annual General Meeting.
2. Amember entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint proxy to attend and on poll, to vote instead of himself/herself. A proxy need not be
amember of the Company.
3. If the Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last shall be considered valid and if
they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies shall be treated as invalid.
4 Itis optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘For’, ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain’ column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy
will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.
5. Signature of member should be across a Revenue Stamp of Re. 1.

6. * Applicable for shares held in dematerialized form.






KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

[CIN: L26924HR1985PLC056150]
Registered Office: SF-11, Second Floor, JMD Regent Plaza, Mehrauli Gurgaon Road, Village Sikanderpur Ghosi, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122001 Phone: +91-124-4081281
Corporate Office: J-1/B-1 (Extn.), Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044
Phone: +91-11-26946409 Fax: +91-11-26946407
E-mail: investors@kajariaceramics.com Website: www.kajariaceramics.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
33" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 33°° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Monday, 26" August, 2019 at
3.00 p.m. at Crowne Plaza Today, Sector-29, National Highway-8, Gurgaon, Haryana-122001.

ELECTRONIC VOTING (E-VOTING) PARTICULARS

EVEN
USER ID PASSWORD / PIN
(Electronic Voting Event Number)
Member’s Folio/DP ID-Client ID No.* Member's/Proxy's Name in Block Letters | Member's/ Proxy's Signature

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period:

Commencement of remote e-voting From 09:00A.M.(IST)on Friday, 23" August, 2019

Ending of remote e-voting Upto 05:00 P.M. (IST)on Sunday, 25" August, 2019

Notes:

1. The Attendance Slip should be completed by mentioning therein Name, Folio No./DP ID-Client ID No. with signature and thereafter, please hand it
over the same at the Attendance Verification Counter atthe ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING.

2. *Applicable for shares held in dematerialized form.

3. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2018-19 and the Notice of the 33 Annual General Meeting ((AGM’) along with the
Attendance Slip, Proxy Form & Route Map to AGM venue are being sent to all the members whose e-mail are registered with the Company /
Depository Participant unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same. Members who has received electronic copy of the
Annual Report, etc. as above said and is attending the AGM can carry printed copy of this Attendance Slip.

4. Physical copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2018-19 and Notice of the AGM along with Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map to
AGM venue is being sent through permitted mode to all members whose e-mail are not registered or who have requested for physical copies of the
same.
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THE SPIRIT OF PUSHING
BOUNDARIES.

THE DRIVE OF
ENVISIONING THE NEW.

THE MINDSET OF NOT
SETTLING FOR WHAT'S
FORMULAIC.

THE PRACTICE OF
ALWAYS STRIVING FOR...
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It’s beyond incremental changes.

More is as much about expanding wide as it is about
delving deep.

More demands Patience. Passion. Conviction.
More doesn’t let you rest on your past laurels.
More redefines your journey at every trajectory.

More keeps you going, long after everyone else has
sought comfort in complacency.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 1



AT KAJARIA,

MORE

HAS BEEN THE
PRIMARY CATALYST
IN OUR JOURNEY
THIS FAR. AND WILL
CONTINUE TO BE
THE FUNDAMENTAL
COMPONENT OF
OUR SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH.

IT DEFINES OUR
CULTURE.

IT FOCUSES ON OUR
TRAJECTORY.

IT SETS US APART.

2 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED
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It’s what enables us to innovate
better than we had done before.

It’'s what pushes us to utilise
resources much more
efficiently.

It’s what fuels our passion for
creating the unthought-of.

It’s why we strive to create a
diverse and engaging workplace.

It’'s why we deliver long-
term economic returns that
encourage stakeholders to
remain connected with us.

It’'s why we’re at the forefront of
whatever we do.

EVERY DAY,

WE STRIVE

TO DELIVER
MORE TO OUR
DEALERS, OUR
CUSTOMERS, OUR
SHAREHOLDERS
AND THE
COMMUNITIES
WHERE WE LIVE
AND WORK.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 3
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Awareness fuels aspiration.

And what inspires aspiration, must keep
evolving at all times, to keep pace with
changing tastes of consumers.

Hence, despite possessing the largest
and most diverse product basket, we
continued to rejuvenate our product
offering.

Because, we realise that tiles have
emerged as an important tool for

enhancing any home’s aesthetic appeal.

Because, every household requires
more than just tiles - they need multiple
types of tiles, they need different sizes,
they need different designs, colour

& aesthetics. Because, we value our
customers’ diversity and preferences.

TLEES
nEEL"

Our strong design team, continues

to innovate new products that leave
customers spellbound; variants that
promise to add a unique touch of
royalty to otherwise mundane spaces.

We take pride in our developments, fully
knowing that it will become increasingly
challenging as we move ahead. For,

the more we impress customers that
Kajaria is a ‘one-stop-solution’ with

its unending range and eye-popping
design, the more they’ll expect from us.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 B 5
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Visibility creates recall. Our branding team continued to
strengthen our customer connect by
And what nurtures recall, must sustain intensifying on-the-street connect
and evolve, to maintain a strong (on-ground activities), on-the-move
connect with the changing profile of connect (innovative social media
decision makers. presence) and in-house connect

(branding on national media during

Hence, despite having a large high visibility events).

distribution network, we continued to
entrench our presence deeper into every  Further, our business development

district and every Tier Il and Il town. team continued to invest in uplifting

dealer’s store ambience for providing
Because, we understand that houses our customers with a breath_taking
are getting significantly better in experience.

smaller towns also. And we need to be

around to add to their aesthetic appeal. We feel satisfied when our customers
remain awestruck, despite knowing

Because, we realise that now there are that we have only raised the bar for

h W ANEF A T . I LR |

multiple decision-makers for tiles in ourselves. For, the more we reach closer
a single household. And we need to to customers, the more we will stand
connect with all of them. out of the clutter - gaining footfalls.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 B 7
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MORE - AN
JUST TILES

IN ONLY THREE DECADES, KAJARIA HAS BECOME THE

9TH LARGEST TILE COMPANY IN THE WORLD.

Headquartered at New Delhi,

India, the Company’s presence,
straddles across the entire tile value
chain - ceramic wall and floor tiles,
polished and glazed vitrified tiles.
The Company showcases its tiles
pan-India, through its extensive

and entrenched dealer network,
providing customers with the widest
choice in tiles across all price points.

The Company is spearheaded by the
visionary entrepreneur, Mr. Ashok
Kajaria, and his sons Mr. Chetan
Kajaria and Mr. Rishi Kajaria, and
ably supported by the management

8 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

team comprising of experienced
and efficient professionals.

In addition to tiles, Kajaria, through
its subsidiary Kajaria Bathware, has
a presence in bathroom solutions
- sanitaryware and faucets - which
are marketed under the ‘Kerovit’
brand. The Company has also
entered into the plywood business
through Kajaria Plywood (a
subsidiary) during the year under
review. Its products are marketed
under the 'KajariaPLY’ brand.

v —
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What makes Kajaria
o unique?
+ Multi-location manufacturing
presence.
. + Multi-vertical presence.

+ Extensive product range
across all price points.

« Entrenched dealer-network.

+ Passion for product
innovation.

- - - . -
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"BEING

MORE

1S THE
PHILOSOPHY
THAT TAUGHT

US HOW TO
START EACH DAY
WITH RENEWED
VIGOUR - TO
STRIVE TOWARDS
BEING BETTER
TODAY, THAN

WE WERE
YESTERDAY.”

Ashok Kajaria
Chairman & Mg. Director

12 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED
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What we feel and believe

inside is what manifests on the
outside. We believe that the real
battleground is always in the

mind. When we emerge victorious

there, progress is a foregone
conclusion.

This mental discipline has carried
us through stiff headwinds that
continued to decelerate the
progress of the tile industry.

Even when demand remained
subdued and competition
intensified, we improved our
sales volume and revenue.
Even when gas prices
remained high for most part
of the year, we maintained
business profitability. Even
as liquidity issues continued
to thwart India Inc.’s growth
aspirations, we tightened
our working capital and
strengthened our financial
statements further.

What made the year more
satisfying was that our
subsidiaries performed much
better than the previous year.

Especially, our bathroom solution

@ CORPORATE
A& OVERVIEW

business - sanitaryware and
faucets - reported healthy growth
in sales along with considerable
improvement in profitability. This
was important as it demonstrates
an increasing acceptance of our
products.

Further, our new business vertical
- plywood contributed %17 crore
to the top line in its first year of
operations.

Real estate... showing signs of
improvement

We feel that the path forward
is expected to get better. Our
optimism stems from credible
assumptions and important
realities.

MANAGEMENT
'2) REPORTS

Chetan Kajaria
Joint Mg. Director

The Government is aware of the
significance of the real estate
sector in boosting the Indian
economy owing to its close
linkages with more than 250
related sectors. In keeping with
this reality, the Government

has strengthened its focus on
uplifting the growth prospects of
the real estate sector.

The improving sentiment of the
real estate sector is evidenced in
an interesting statistic. According
to data from Cushman &
Wakefield, investors have put in
a record US$2.5 billion or 17,600
crore in the first quarter of 2019
(calendar year). The investment
has not only more than doubled

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 13
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on a sequential basis, but it has
also been the highest among
first-quarter inflows since over
a decade. This reposes the faith
that the prospects of the real
estate sector appear to improve
over the medium term.

Further, reconstruction is
emerging as an interesting
opportunity. Multiple State
Governments are working
out legislations to smoothen
the process of reconstructing
dilapidated buildings.

Tiles...better days in store

We believe that we will see better
days in the near term. For the
Government has taken important
steps to create a level playing
field between the organised
players and the informal sector.

e The National Green Tribunal
(NGT), in March 2019, ordered
all ceramic units that operate on
coal gasifiers in Morbi, Gujarat to
switch to gas.

* Intensified compliance to
the GST regime by the informal
players.

These factors should provide
an impetus to national brands
to increase their share in the

sectoral pie.

Kajaria...focused on progress

Being at the top and sustaining
our position there -- nobody said
it would be easy. Nothing worth
its salt, ever is.

But as is always said, whatever
the circumstance, we always have
a choice. And we have made our
choice. We will endeavour to raise
our performance bar higher with
each passing year.

In keeping with this resolve, we
have drawn a road map for the

14 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

current year, which we believe will
strengthen organisational stability
and shore business profitability. It
comprises of:

* Intensifying our focus on
branding and awareness efforts
by leveraging the social, print and
electronic media.

* Increasing the proportion

of exclusive showrooms in our
distribution network even as

we continue to entrench our
presence in the Indian landmass.

* Maintaining our asset-light
strategy for growing volumes.

* Growing the presence,
awareness and availability of our
bathroom solution products to
sustain the growth momentum
over the medium term.

* Widening the presence of
our plywood business in key
consuming markets.

Acknowledgement

As we step into 2019-20, we take
this opportunity to express our
sincere gratitude to our eminent
Board, for their commitment and
professionalism in paving Kajaria’s
long-term path.

We place on record, our deep
appreciation to all our valuable
shareholders for their continued
confidence and support. We

thank the Central and State
Governments for their support.
We also thank all our suppliers
and dealers, who continue to be
our partners in growth. Lastly
but most importantly, we whole-
heartedly thank our executives
and staff for their invaluable

and unwavering dedication in
contributing to Kajaria’s growth.

Warm Regards

The Management Team

Rishi Kajaria
Joint Mg. Director
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KAJARIA'S
MULTI- LOCATIONAL
MANUFACTURING

PRESENCE
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India retains its
position as the global
shining star

r-

India continues to retain its
position as the world’s fastest-
growing major economy, on
the back of improved investor
confidence and better policy
reforms. The IMF’s database
also suggested that India’s
contribution to world growth
has increased from 7.6% during
2000-2008 to 14.5% in 2018.

@ CORPORATE
A OVERVIEW

THE INDIAN
ECONOMY

India’s GDP decelerated a little,
from 8.2% in 2016-17 to 7.2% in
2017-18 and touched 7% in 2018-19.
And this has become a cause of
concern for opinion makers. This
is because fiscal 2018-19 which
was looked upon as a year of
considerable promise did not
live up to expectations. Despite
this slowdown, India continued
to shine in the global village.

It cemented its position as the
fastest growing major economy
in the world.

Furthermore, India’s Industrial
Production (lIP) contracted by
0.1% in March 2019, the lowest

in 21 months, mainly due to the
manufacturing sector slow down.
On an annual basis, IIP growth
slowed to a three-year low of
3.6% in the 2018-19 fiscal as

against 4.4% in the previous fiscal.

Towards the close of the fiscal,

the economy slowed a little. The
Ministry of Finance in its Monthly
Economic Report of March 2019
indicated that India’'s economy
appears to have slowed down
slightly in 2018-19. The approximate
factors responsible for this
slowdown include declining growth
of private consumption, a tepid
increase in fixed investment, and
muted exports.

Fiscal 2018-19 had its share of
positives.

*  Revenue from Goods and
Services Tax (GST) witnessed a
10% growth from the year-ago
period at %113 trillion in April (for
March 2019), the highest ever
since its implementation. This

FINANCIA
STATEMENTS

MANAGEMENT - |1

is encouraging as it indicates
that the tax base is increasing
gradually with GST getting
stabilised.

* India moved up by 23 places
in the World Bank’s Ease of Doing
Business Index 2018 to the 77th
rank.

* India has moved up one place
to rank 43rd most competitive
economy in the world in the IMD
World Competitiveness Rankings.

Going forward, there continues
to be optimism on India’s growth
prospects.

According to Moody’s, the Indian
economy is expected to grow at
7.3% in calendar years 2019 and
2020. The Government spending
announced ahead of the general
elections in 2019 is expected to
support near-term growth.

The International Monetary Fund
(IMF) has forecast India’s GDP
growth at 7.3% in 2019 (2019-20)
and 7.5% in 2020. Their optimism
is based on the continued
recovery of investment and
robust consumption amid a more
expansionary stance of monetary
policy and some expected
impetus from fiscal policy.

Asian Development Bank and
the RBI estimate GDP growth for
2019-20 at 7.2%.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 17



\YiE

TILE SECTOR

After a fairly dynamic
performance in 2016, the global
tile production and consumption
saw weaker growth (around 2%)
in 2017. The import-export flow
continued its downward trend.
After slowing in 2016, import-
export flows dropped by 1.4% in
2017, the first fall since 2009.

Top Manufacturing Countries

]

China, the world’s largest
producer, consumer and
exporter of ceramic tiles, saw

a fall in both production and
exports in 2017. In 2017, India
strengthened its position as

the world’s second largest tile
producer and consumer country.
Production increased from 955 to
1,080 million sg.m (+13%), while
domestic consumption fell by 3%
to 760 million sg.m.

(sq. m. mill.)

cY 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 % Tor: ::Jzt;';ﬁ"d f‘;ﬁé
1. CHINA 5700 6000 5970 6495 6400 472 1.5
2. INDIA 750 825 850 955 1080 8.0 131
3. BRAZIL 871 903 899 792 790 5.8 (0.3)
4. VIETNAM 300 360 440 485 560 41 155
5. SPAIN 420 425 440 492 530 3.9 7
6. ITALY 363 382 395 416 422 31 1.6
7. IRAN 500 410 300 340 373 2.8 9.7
8. TURKEY 340 315 320 330 355 26 7.6
9. INDONESIA 390 420 370 360 307 2.3 4.7
10. EGYPT 200 220 230 250 300 2.2 20.0
TOTAL 9834 10260 10214 10915 17 82.0 1.9
TOTALWORLD 11980 12428 12460 13255 13552 100.0 2.2
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TOTAL

Production 13,552
(MSM)

% of world 100.0
production

% var. 17/16 +2.2

Consumption 13,270
(MSM)

% of world 100.0
production

% var. 17/16 +2.3

[_

Top Consumption Countries (sq. m. mill.)
cy 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 * %’;::Jztm”d ?’7‘/’7‘;
1. CHINA 4556 4894 4885 5475 5498 4.4 04
2. INDIA 718 756 763 785 760 57 (3.2)
3. BRAZIL 837 853 816 706 708 53 0.3
4. VIETNAM 25 310 400 412 580 4.4 40.8
5, INDONESIA 360 407 357 369 336 25 (8.9)
6. USA 230 231 254 274 283 21 3.3
7. TURKEY 226 215 234 241 254 1.9 54
8. EGYPT 170 190 190 215 252 1.9 V.2
9. MEXICO 187 197 218 235 242 1.8 3.0
10.  SAUDI ARABIA 235 244 263 248 203 1.5 asmn

TOTAL 7770 8297 8380 8960 9116 68.7 1.7
TOTAL WORLD 11601 12132 12280 12973 13270 100.0 2.3
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THE

INDIARN

TILE SECTOR

The prevailing lacklustre
environment in the real estate
sector continued to thwart

the progress of the Indian tile
industry. As demand for tiles
remained constrained, the
informal sector intensified the
competitive pressure. This
impacted business profitability of
the entire tile industry. Moreover,
the increase in gas prices also
curtailed business margins.

Although the industry is largely
comprised of the informal sector
epi-centered at Morbi, a small
industrial town near Rajkot,

the organised sector, through
patient and passionate efforts

in branding and product display,
has been primarily instrumental
in graduating the Indian tile
industry to global standards.
Despite facilitating this change,

the progress of the organised
sector remained constrained by
the informal sector.

But this is expected to change.
The Indian tile industry, the
world’s second largest, is
expected to experience a shift

in favour of the organised sector
over the coming years. This shift
is being contoured by policies and
decisions that promise to create
a level playing field between
organised players and the
informal sector.

While the launch of GST and the
e-way bill facilitated in reducing
the price differential partially, the
recent Government notification
heralds promising times for the
organised sector.

The National Green Tribunal, in
March 2019, ordered all ceramic

INDUSTRY - CHALLENGES AND PROSPECTS

OPPORTUNITIES

* Increased compliance (GST & e-way

bill)- to favour organised sector.

* Capture larger market share- due to

shift from unorganised to branded.

* Favourable macro-economic levers-
Government initiatives such as “housing
for all” and investment in infrastructure. .=

* Rising disposable income of an
average Indian.

20 m KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

tile units that operate on coal
gasifiers in Morbi, Gujarat to
switch to gas. This will reduce
the price differential between
the informal sector and their
organised counterparts.

Various Government initiatives

for infrastructure development,
favourable demographics,
growing aspirations and
increasing affordability are
expected to drive demand for
tiles over the coming years
especially for the branded players.

THREATS

* Volatile fuel prices.

* Growing competitive
intensity.

* Slowdown in real estate
sector and general economy.



In a nutshell

MANAGEMENT I@I FINANCIA
'2) REPORTS STATEMENTS

* Production was 1,080 MSM as of CY 2017.
* Consumption was 760 MSM as of CY 2017.
* Export was 228 MSM as of CY 2017.

° The industry has been growing at a CAGR
of 8-9% in the last 4-5 years but has de-
grown marginally in FY2018 and 2019.

(Source: Ceramic World Review)

Production and YOY growth of Ceramic Tiles in India

Production of ceramic tiles in India
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Consumption and YOY growth of Ceramic Tiles in India
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THE
REAL ESTATE
SECTOR

2018 added to the woes of the
stressed real estate sector. At

a time when India’s real estate
sector was aligning itself with
the GST and RERA environment,
the liquidity squeeze in the non-
banking financial sector morphed
into a liquidity crunch for the real
estate industry. This dealt a body
blow to the sector, curtailing

its growth. But 2019 which has
started on an interesting note,
appears to be a mixed bag.

Residential segment: In 2019, the
residential segment of the real
estate could face liquidity issues
owing to the lingering impact of
the NBFC crisis. This could lead
to real estate developers having
to grapple with strained liquidity
and a high cost of capital. If this
transpires, it would further delay
work resumption at their stalled
projects.

Prices are likely to remain
stagnant and developers will
continue to focus on clearing
existing inventory rather than
launching new projects as
they will also need to align
with regulatory changes like
Real Estate (Regulation and
Development) Act, 2016 (RERA),
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
and overall muted demand.

As liquidity issues taper off,
residential space should witness
some recovery - but that would
be at least 12-18 months away.

22 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

Commercial real estate: The
commercial space in real estate is
expected to remain the buoyant

force in the real estate asset class.

This is owing to the incumbent
Government’s proactive initiatives
such as Make in India and the
thriving start-up culture in the
country, demand, and absorption
for well-located office properties
has been high. In addition, new
sectors like co-working spaces
are further expected to push

the demand for commercial
properties.

Experts suggest demand in office
and retail sectors will continue to
beat supplies, leading to lower
vacancies and higher rental yields
in 2019-20. Also, private equity
participation is quite high in
commercial assets, which lends
more shine to this space.

The Logistics & Warehousing
sector is expected to show
significant traction in 2019 and
beyond, owing to a large infusion
of foreign capital (after the
logistics sector was granted the
infrastructure status).

Renewed interest in real
estate: Higher participation

of foreign investors in the first
quarter of CY 2019 is a signal
of sustained interest in the
country’s real estate story backed
by increasing transparency and
friendly investment policies.
There are bright opportunities
in the warehousing and logistics
segment with office and retail

sectors showing continued
traction.

The office segment accounted for
44.8% of the total investments
during the period, with US$114
billion or 7,925 crore. This was

a 30% increase from a year

ago, signalling the persistent
investment appetite for quality
office assets in the country.

The residential segment
accounted for 20.9% of the overall
private equity inflows at 33,697
crore during the quarter.

As a sum up, the year 2019

will be both challenging and
opportunistic and the ones
likely to succeed are those who
embrace the changing market
dynamics.

According to the

report ‘Real Estate

Market Outlook 2019

- India’ by CBRE,

the real estate stock

in India will reach
3.7 trillion sq ft at

l the end of this year

(2019).



HOME LOAN
SEGMENT

E MANAGEMENT
, '2) REPORTS

ON A CLOSER LOOK...EMPTY BUILDINGS POSSESS INTERESTING
OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE BUILDING PRODUCTS SECTOR.

Stagnation in home sales should
have led to sluggishness in the
disbursement of home loans.
However, that hasn’t happened.
The growth of bank home loans
has been healthy. Moreover, home
loans have been growing faster
than the overall growth in bank
loans.

This could be owing to the
growing knowledge and
awareness of the average Indian.
One thing that Indians have learnt
over the last few years, is not

to buy a property that is under
construction.

In fact, due to the lack of

trust on builders, they are
apprehensive even of buying
residential properties that have
been completed but are lying
unoccupied with the builders.

High prices of properties have
played their role in this as well.
This explains the high number of
unsold residential units across the
eight big cities.

Interestingly, home buying
continued to happen. And there
appear to be two drivers for the
same.

1) Actual home users are moving
into societies, which are already
occupied to some extent. Buyers
are negotiating with investors
(buyers of homes as an asset
class) as they are a bit more
amenable to price negotiations.

2) Affordable housing, backed
by a series of Government sops
during 2018, kept the residential
demand-supply momentum
ticking. While most real estate

Home loans grow faster than bank loans

Since June 2014, growth of home loans has been faster than that of bank
loans, During July-September 2018, outstanding home loans grew at 15.6%

20

4 o
Jun 2014

— Growth in home loans

— Growth in non-food credit
(in %)

11.31

)
Sep 2018

(Source: Reserve Bank of India)

developers entered this segment
to garner a share of this
opportunity pie, Government sops
fuelled demand.

What does this mean for the
Building Products sector?

This means that actual home
users will move into their new
homes, they will invest in their
home aesthetics, they will
purchase building products.

This signifies that even if
institutional demand for building
products remain stagnant over
the near term, retail demand from
end-users is expected to remain
strong.

Reconstruction
- ah opportunity
in the making
The President of
India has recently
given assent to three
state bills, including a
legislation which will
smoothen the process
of reconstructing
dilapidated buildings or
a complex of buildings
} in land-starved
Mumbai. If this works,
I this could lead to other
states following suit.
Going forward, this
little step could open
a large opportunity for
-

the building products
sector.
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CERA

WALL & FLOOR

TILES

This is the flagship division
which, over the years, has
transformed Kajaria from a tile
brand to a household aspiration.
Ceramic Wall and Floor tiles are
manufactured in Rajasthan and
Andhra Pradesh and outsourced
fromm multiple quality conscious
vendors in Gujarat, rolling out
products in more than 17 sizes, a
plethora of concepts and designs.

The division markets its basket
through its wide and entrenched
Pan-India dealer network. The
Company recently created a

new distribution channel of
Dealers called ‘Kajaria Prima Plus’,
showrooms exclusively selling its
Ceramic Wall and Floor Tiles.

What we achieved in 2018-19

The division has made a healthy
contribution to the overall business
in 2018-19. The division registered
a healthy double-digit growth as
volumes scaled from 34.68 MSM

in 2017-18 to 38.35 MSM in 2018-19.
Net revenue increased by 8% from
21,041 crore in 2017-18 to % 1,124
crore in 2018-19.

24 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

What kept us busy in 2018-19

The team worked on driving
profitable business growth
through the following initiatives:

* Launched the 60x120 cm
Ceramic Floor tile size in a range of
contemporary designs and finishes
which evoked a healthy response
from the dealer community.

* Added 35 Prima Plus
showrooms in 2018-19 taking the
total to 100, strengthening this
distribution channel.

» Organised Caravaan
Exhibitions Shows in multiple
cities across India with a special
emphasis on Tier 2 and Tier 3
Cities and Towns showcasing new
designs and finishes supported
by strong branding & product
promotion activities.

What we have planned for
2019-20

The team will continue to
strengthen the Prima Plus

Rl
|

LM UEEE

network with a target of doubling
it to 200 by March 2021 -
transforming this channel into its
key showcase tool and growth
driver over the coming years.
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2810 2,000

Capacity SKUs
(MSM)
38.35 1,124 38
Sales volume Revenue Contribution to
(MSM) KX crore) the consolidated

(%)
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POLISEED

VITRIFIED
TILES

This division has come a * Introduced value plus range
long way in emerging as an 1000x1000 mm, 800x1600 mm &
important business driver. Kajaria full body vitrified tiles.
manufactures polished vitrified

tiles, (soluble salts and double What we have planned for
charged), at its facilities in 2019-20

Rajasthan and Morbi in diverse
sizes, designs and finishes.

The Company’s products are
marketed through its multi-format
distribution channel pan-India.

The team will work on increasing
its outsourcing partners for
creating the capacity to satiate
the increasing demand for Kajaria
products.

What we achieved in 2018-19

The Company’s sales volumes
increased by 12% - from 22.74
MSM in 2017-18 to 25.37 MSM in
2018-19. Net revenue increased
by 6% from ¥808 crore in 2017-18
to ¥855 crore in 2018-19 - even as
the PVT sector registered a de-
growth.

What kept us busy in 2018-19

«  Focused on value-added/large
sizes, which helped in improving
the capacity utilisation of the
plant and better realisation.

* Increased reliance on quality-
respecting outsourcing partners

for some high-volume sizes for
gaining better market reach. .

26 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED



22.40

Capacity
(MSM)

25.37

Sales volume
(MSM)

@ CORPORATE MANAGEMENT II FINANCIAL
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SKUs

855 <9

Revenue Contribution to
KX crore) the consolidated
(%)
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GLAZE

VITRIFIED
TILES

Having pioneered this product
into the Indian shores in 2003,
Kajaria is the dominant player

in this product vertical. The
Company’s array of products are
marketed under the ‘Eternity’
brand through an entrenched
network of dealers (Kajaria
Eternity World, Kajaria Galaxy and
Kajaria Eternity Boutique chains),
targeting customers primarily in
metros and other urban locales.
The Company offers the largest
number of wood and stone finish
tiles in a large format.

What we achieved in 2018-19

Even as sales volumes increased
by 14% - from 14.54 MSM in
2017-18 to 16.59 MSM in 2018-19,
increased competitive intensity
impacted revenue growth. As a
result, net revenue stood at ¥775
crore in 2018-19 against 721 crore
in 2017-18.

What kept us busy in 2018-19

The team continued to challenge
prevailing sectoral headwinds

by adding innovative products,
globally-prevalent designs and
styles and investing in solutions

28 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

that create a welcoming
and novel experience for its
customers.

* Launched larger format tiles
(' mtr x 2 mtr and 40 x 120 cm) in
multiple designs and finishes.

* Leveraged technology at the
dealer showrooms for experiential
sales.

*  Entered the new-age
residential hubs in Tier Il and
IIl towns by creating a dealer
network in these locales.

What we have planned for
2019-20

Even as we continue to challenge
the creativity of our team with
innovative design concepts, the
team will focus on entrenching its
presence deeper in South India,
to create a channel for the 5 MSM
output from the new facility to
be commissioned by September
2019. This then would drive
volumes and enhance business
profitability going forward.




17.50

Capacity
(MSM)

16.5¢

Sales volume
(MSM)
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1,096

SKUs

775 26

Revenue Contribution to
X crore) the consolidated
(%)
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Kerout

BATH

What we achieved in 2018-19 e Initiated the capacity
expansion which is expected to
commence operation in 2019-20
and will increase capacity by
about 20%.

The division registered a
revenue of 185 crore in 2018-
19 - an increase of 33% over
the previous year. This growth
was owing to an increase in In the faucets division
sales volumes consequent to
focused efforts on branding and
product awareness. New designs
and value-added variants also

e Stabilised plant operations
from 46% in 2017-18 to 65% in
2018-19 to optimise costs.

generated interesting volumes. ¢ Launched four new product
The division registered an EBITDA  ranges (each comprising 20

of 7.92 crore in 2018-19 against SKUs) which received healthy
32.47 crore in 2017-18 - primarily customer response.

owing to increased volumes
which provided superior cost-
efficiencies.

¢ Organised regular plumber,
dealer, and architect meets for
building connections with key

opinion influencers.
What kept us busy in 2018-19

What we have planned for

The team focused its energies 2019-20

on branding initiatives leveraging

print and electronic media. In Having established a meaningful

addition, it widened its presence presence in the bathroom fitting

by growing the dealer network. space, the team will work towards

As a result, offtake improved. making this division an important
business contributor. This

In the sanitaryware division transformation will be driven by

growing volumes and increasing
value (through high-value
products and smart solutions).

¢ Launched the single piece
toilet in multiple variants (one
with tornado flushing system
and one with Symphonic flushing
system) which was well received
by customers.

* Launched the Smart WC
at a competitive price which
made healthy inroads into the
marketplace.
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PLYWGOD

Kajaria Plywood Pvt. Ltd. (a
subsidiary of the Company),
aims to offer wood panel
products under the brand name
of KajariaPLY and this brand has
strived to adopt technologies
as well as standards of modern
times.

The team is aggregating

various unorganised and semi-
organised manufacturers through
manufacturing tie-ups thereby
up-skilling and upgrading
respective plant capabilities

with technical know-how as

well as financial inputs, which in
turn will help shift the existing
capacities into the organised
part of the industry and formal
economy. As a direct result of
the implementation of the GST
and e-way bill, the share of the
organised sector, which currently
stands at less than 1/3rd of the
318,000 crore plywood industry,
should increase.

As a first step, the team launched
its products in West and North
India by appointing direct
dealers across various towns

and cities. In an industry-first,

the Company has appointed
Bollywood celebrity Ranveer
Singh, as the brand ambassador
to promote KajariaPLY. In order
to cater to the markets in the

32 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

most optimal manner, the product
portfolio has been segregated
into metallic series & pro series
and encompasses both plywood
as well as block-boards. The
complete product range currently
has 12 products in 6 different sub-
brands i.e. Platinum, Gold Maxx,
Gold, Silver, Pro-710 & Pro-Build
(both plywood and block-board),
of which the metallic series
products have been specially
curated for all sort of climatic
applications whereas the pro-
series products are designed to
cater to price-sensitive markets.

In addition, the team is also
investing in a program for
coaching carpenters and
contractors to use quality
products with correct application
based on individual features.

The division registered a top line
of 17 crore in 2018-19.

Going forward, the team will
enter South India markets
even as it continues to work
on strengthening its presence
in North and West India. The
team is also working towards

adding Flush Doors in its
product portfolio as well as
adding more customer-centric
plywood & block-board products.
Moreover, the team has drawn

a comprehensive branding and
advertisement blueprint to

grow product awareness in key
consuming markets.

1 Pl BY NS
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ANALYSIS OF

F

STATEMENTS

Statement of Profit and Loss

Net sales increased by 9.06%

from 22,710.60 crore in 2017-18 to
32,956.20 crore in 2018-19 primarily
due to increase in sales volumes.

The Company witnessed slight
decline in EBITDA by 1.51% from
3456.36 crore in 2017-18 to
3449.49 crore in 2018-19. This was
mainly because of an increase in
gas prices, which could not be
passed on to the market.

Interest cost reduced from 32410
crore in 2017-18 to %15.59 crore in
2018-19 consequent to repayment
of debt and decline in utilisation
of the working capital limit by
subsidiaries. As a result, the
interest coverage ratio increased
from 16.01in 2017-18 to 23.83 in
2018-19.

Depreciation remained at previous
year levels as there was no major
capital project operationalised
during the year under review.

Net profit for the year stood at
3226.57 crore in 2018-19 against
3234.96 crore in 2017-18. The
Company declared a dividend
of 300% for 2018-19, which if
approved, will result in a payout
of ¥57.49 crore.

Balance Sheet

Shareholders’ Fund increased
from %1,350.38 crore as on March
31, 2018 to %1,574.90 crore as on
March 31, 2019 - owing to addition
of surplus profit during the year.
As a result, the book value per

34 B KAJARIA CERAMICS LIMITED

INANCIAL

share increased from 384.93 to
99.05 over the same period.

Return on Net worth declined
from 18.61% as on March 31, 2018 to
15.49% as on March 31, 2019 owing
to increase in networth (addition
of current year profit) without any
increase in profitability.

The Company continued to
strengthen its Balance Sheet. The
Company’s gross debt declined
from %170.33 crore as on March 31,
2018 to 120.33 crore as on March
31, 2019, reducing its debt equity
ratio from 0.12 times as on March
31, 2018 to 0.07 times as on March
31,2019 whereas net debt equity
became negative to (0.08) times
as on March 31, 2019.

The Net Assets balance largely
remained at the previous year
levels. However, the asset
portfolio is expected to increase
in the current year (2019-20) as
the Company will commercialise
the upcoming capacity in tiles (5
MSM facilities in South India, AP)
and in sanitaryware unit which

is currently reflected under the
head capital work-in-progress.

Despite the tough market
conditions, the Company’s
working capital cycle witnessed

a decline of 2 days from 60 days
as on March 31, 2018 to 58 days as
on March 31, 2019.

Moreover, cash and bank balance
increased from 382.47 crore as on
March 31, 2018 to 252.38 crore as
on March 31, 2019.

Cash Flow Statement

Net cash from operating activities
increased from 323817 crore in
2017-18 to %317.36 crore in 2018-19
showcasing the Company’s ability
in strengthening organisational
liquidity through disciplined
working capital management.
This enabled the Company to
invest in capacity augmentation
even as it reduced its total debt.

*For Outlook/Internal Control
System and their accuracy, please
refer to the Directors’ Report.

m auﬁ
HUMAN
RESOURCE

Kajaria believes that its h
intellectual capital represents
its most valuable asset. In
line with this, the Company
has positioned employee
engagement as a key priority

]

through its people-centric
policies and initiatives.

The Company has
consistently worked on
ensuring that its people
competencies are enhanced
in line with changing
business needs - leading

to their professional and
personal growth. As a result,
the Company enjoys the
support of a committed and
well satisfied 2,588-member
team.

L



MANAGING

BUSINESS AND

SECTORAL

CHAL

Growth Risk

Sustaining the growth momentum
could become challenging, having
attained this size.

Mitigation: India’s low per capita
consumption of tiles against

the global average showcases

the latent demand which is
expected to surface owing to
important drivers such as rising
demand for commercial space,
and an increasing thrust on
infrastructure creation, among
others. Further, Government
announcements are expected

to grow opportunities for the
organised sector. Moreover, the
very low market share of Kajaria,
the leader in the industry, signifies
enough headroom available to the
Company for growth.

Cost Risk

Increasing gas prices could
impact the cost sheet of the tile
business.

Mitigation: This holds true for
every tile manufacturer in India
and Kajaria is no exception. But
Kajaria stands out, owing to its
ability in managing this cost hike.

* The Company’s brand
strength allows it to pass on the
increased cost.

* The Company’s large and
growing sales volumes provide
economies of scale which optimises
the impact of the cost hike.

Cybersecurity risk

Increasing reliance on IT solutions
as a critical business imperative
makes the organisation’s
functioning, vulnerable to a
cybersecurity threat.

Mitigation: Kajaria has formulated
an internal Information Security
policy and guidelines to control
and mitigate risks for endpoints
being used by business process
owners. They include:

» Information security measures
have been taken through Network
access control, Analysis, Web
Proxy and endpoint device
security.

* Access and authorisation to
the business application have also
been secured through multiple
security layers.

* Redundancy has been created
at various layers including
Servers, Storage and other
Network devices.

* A high availability planis in
place to recover a critical system
in the event of any disaster to
maintain business continuity.

Further, regularly review of key
IT application controls, a timely
statutory audit of IT systems
and application controls by an
empanelled auditor ensure the
effectiveness of the control
measures.
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Reputation risk

Loss of trust in the Company’s
integrity and product promise
could significantly impact
business performance.

Mitigation: The Company realizes
the responsibility of being an
industry statesman and the
importance of maintaining the
corporate and brand reputation
at that position. To sustain its
standing, the Company adopts
the following:

* Ensures that its products
adhere to the highest quality
standards at all times.

* Maintains a strict ethical

code, for all transactions with

its stakeholders; this is further
consolidated by multiple

checks and balances to ensure
compliance with the prevailing law.

* Maintains a disciplined
schedule for timely payment to
bankers, creditors, employees and
the Government.

* Maintains a balanced working
environment for its employees
to thrive and grow professionally
and personally.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 35



D

=@
20O

Lo —Fwehalllen,

)

Your Directors are pleased to present the 33rd Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended on 31st March 2019 is summarized below:

(R in crores)

Standalone

Consolidated

Particular Year ended

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

Year ended Year ended

31st March 2019

Year ended
31st March 2018

Revenue from Operations

(et of Excise) 2726 2581 2956 271
Profit Before Other

Income, Exceptpnal 400 428 449 456
[tems, Depreciation,

Interest and taxes

Profit before Tax 373 382 358 355
Tax Expense 127 129 129 127
Prlofit'Aftler Tax (before 246 252 229 229
Minority interest)

Minority Interest - - 2 (6)
Profit After Tax (after 246 252 227 035

Minority interest)

Financial highlights and State of Affairs of
the Company

The ceramic tile sector continued to bear the brunt
of a lacklustre real estate market. In the face of these
challenges, your Company’s focused marketing efforts
yvielded satisfactory results. The Company reported
standalone revenue of 32,726 crore- a growth of 6%
over the previous year; Net Profit stood at 3246 crore- a
decline of 3% over the previous year.

On a consolidated basis, the Company attained a revenue
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of 2,956 crore for the current year- a growth of 9%.
EBITDA and Net profit for the year declined marginally
by 2% and 4% respectively over the previous year.

The Bathware division attained a revenue of %185 crore-
a growth of 33% over the previous year and the plywood
business attained a topline of %17 crore in the first year
of its operations.

The State of Affair of the Company is detailed in the
‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section which
forms part of this report.



Outlook

Improving macro-economic factors,
rates and government sops for the MSME sector herald
a promising year for the average Indian. This should

stable interest

cascade into an increase in discretionary spending,
which augurs well for the tile sector. Moreover, the
recent ban on use on coal gasifiers in Morbi, Gujarat,
comes as a heartening feature as it promises to create
a level playing field between the unorganised and the
organised sector.

Growth drivers

There is expected optimism for the branded tile industry
and Kajaria being the dominant player (with a large
product basket and entrenched presence) should make
the most of emerging opportunities.

Real estate sector: Even as residential segment in the
real estate sector continues to be plagued with piling
inventory, the commercial segment is expected to grow
at a healthy pace.

India is the
star in the global economy. To sustain its position,

Infrastructure development: shining
the Government continues to invest in creating new
and refurbishing the existing With
emphasis on building smart cities, Government plans a

infrastructure.

focused development in industrial parks and corridors,
hubs,
airport development and strengthening
logistics segment.

technological railway and metro network

expansion,

Increase in market share: The Company’s unwavering
product basket with
aesthetically superior products, their continued efforts
in widening the distribution network, and their initiatives
in cementing a lasting recall, will facilitate in growing

focus on rejuvenating its

their market share in an otherwise competitive business
space.

Presence in South India: The Company’s new GVT
facility in South India (to commence operations in
September 2019), which is a large and growing real
estate market, should generate healthy volumes.

Dividend

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of %3/-
(i.e. 300%) per equity share (previous year ¥3.00 per
equity share) of a face value of %1 each fully paid-up for
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the financial year ended on 31st March 2019. If approved,
the total payout is expected to be 5749 Crores
(including dividend distribution tax of ¥9.80 Crores).
The dividend payout for the year under review has been
formulated in accordance with the Company’s Dividend
Distribution Policy, to pay sustainable dividend keeping
in mind linked to its long-term growth aspiration of the
Company.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company adopted Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind-AS) from 1st April, 2016 and accordingly, the
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standard notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant rules issued thereunder read with the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and the other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
Consolidated Financial Statements form part of the
Annual Report.

During the year under review, there are no material
changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company and also no change in the
nature of business of the Company.

Holding, Subsidiaries, Associate, Joint Venture

Companies and their performance

During the year under review, Soriso Ceramic Private
Limited ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company and
Kajaria Plywood Private Limited became a subsidiary of
the Company.

During the year under review, Kajaria Floera Ceramics
Private Limited (‘Floera’) became the wholly-owned
subsidiary as the Company has acquired additional 30
Lakhs equity shares of ¥10/- each of Floera.

A report on performance and financial position (Form
AOC-1) of each of the subsidiaries as per the Companies
Act, 2013 is provided as Annexure-1

Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is
T129,10,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Twenty Nine
Crores Ten Lakhs only) divided into 52,00,00,000 (Fifty
Two Crores) Equity Shares of %1/- each (Rupee One
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Only) aggregating to ¥52,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Two
Crores Only) and 7710,000 (Seventy Seven Lakhs Ten
Thousand) Redeemable Preference Shares of 100/-
each (Rupees One Hundred Only) aggregating to
T7710,00,000 (Rupees Seventy Seven Crores Ten Lakhs
Only). The paid up share capital of the Company, as on
3lst March, 2019, was 15,89,50,300 equity shares of 1
each.

The Company has not issued shares with differential
voting rights. As on 31st March, 2019, none of the
Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible
into equity shares of the Company.

Employee Stock Option Scheme

Kajaria Ceramics Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 (‘The
ESOP Plan 2015") was approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 7th September, 2015 for issue and
allotment of options exercisable into not more than
10,62,000* equity shares of %1 each (Originally the
ESOP Plan 2015 was for 5,31,000 equity shares of %2
each) to eligible employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The ESOP Plan 2015 is administered by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company. On 20th October
2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company had granted 4,58,000* equity shares of T 1
each (‘Stock option’) to the employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries. 97,000 equity shares of %1 each
(44,000 equity shares during the year 2018-19, 13,000
equity shares during the year 2017-18 and 40,000 equity
shares during the year 2016-17) had been forfeited due
to resignation/death of ESOP Option holders. Details
regarding the ESOP Plan 2015 are given at Note No. 39
to the financial statements.

During the year under review, there are no material
changes in the ESOP Plan 2015 and the same is in
compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (‘ESOP Regulations’). The
disclosures under Regulations 14 of ESOP Regulations
is uploaded on the Company’s website viz.. https:/
www.kajariaceramics.com/pdf/disclosure pursuant_to
reg_14_of sebi_sbeb_reg 2014 for fy 2018 19.pdf

*During the year 2016-17, equity shares of the Company had
been sub-divided from 32 per share to X1 per share.

Transfer to Reserves

During the year under review, there is no transfer of fund
to the Company’s General Reserve Account.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Directors confirm that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended on 3lst March, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and no
material departures have been made from the same;

i) Appropriate accounting policies have been selected

and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on 3lst March, 2019 and of the profit of

the Company for the period ended 31st March, 2019;

i) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

v) The Company is following up the proper Internal
financial controls and such internal financial controls
are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi) The Company has devised proper systems to
ensure the compliance with the provisions of all the
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance requirements as stipulated under the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). A separate
section on corporate governance, along with a certificate
from the Practicing Company Secretary confirming the
compliance, is annexed and forms part of the Annual
Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis on matters related
to the business performance as stipulated in the Listing
Regulations is given as a separate section in the Annual
Report.



Related Party Transactions

Forallrelated party transactions, prior omnibus approvals
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, as
may be required under the applicable laws, are usually
obtained on yearly basis, which are of a foreseen and
repetitive nature and such approval is in the interest of
the Company. The transactions entered into, pursuant to
the omnibus approvals so granted, are placed before the
Audit Committee by way of a statement giving details
of all related party transactions for its review. All related
party transactions are disclosed in Note No. 36 to the
financial statements. Material related party transactions
with subsidiaries which are at arm’s length price are
disclosedin Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure-2. During
the financial year 2018-19, the Related Party Transactions
Policy has been revised (effective from April 1, 2019) by
the Board in compliance with the Listing Regulations
read with the Companies Act, 2013 and is uploaded on
the Company’s website i.e. https:/www.kajariaceramics.
com/pdf/RelatedPartyTransactionPolicy.pdf

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

In terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has
formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
(‘CSR Policy’) indicating the activities to be undertaken
by the Company. The constitution of the Corporate

the Companies (Corporate Social

Social Responsibility Committee (‘(CSR Committee’) is
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (‘\CSR’) Policy may
be accessed on the Company’s website i.e. https:/www.
kajariaceramics.com/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf

Your Company strives to make a difference in the lives
of people with a special focus on neighbouring and local
areas of the Company’s manufacturing locations. Your
Company has implemented various CSR programmes /
projects which made positive impacts mainly in the areas
of health, sanitation, conservation of natural resources,
social relief, promoting sports and education. During
the year under review, the CSR programmes initiated
by the Company includes taking steps for Swachh
Bharat, preventive health care, constructing sanitation
facilities in the schools, etc. near the manufacturing
facilities, contributing to the education and social
economic development of under privileged children
and for rural area development. These CSR initiatives
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are implemented directly and through various trusts /
societies / NGOs. These projects are also in accordance
with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Annual Report on CSR activities as required
under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-3, forming
part of this Report. The Company has incurred CSR
expenditure of ¥4.86 Crores during the financial year
2018-19, being about 63.20% of ¥7.69 Crores, to be
spent during the financial year 2018-19. The shortfall of
36.80% in the required expenditure on CSR was due to
non-identification of appropriate projects/programmes
as the Company is looking for a long-term projects/
programmes which will benefit to the society at large
in line with the intend of laws for which CSR provisions
have been made in the statute.

Risk Management

Your Company understands the importance of various
risks faced by it and has adopted a Risk Management
Policy which establishes various levels of accountability
within the Company. The Company has also constituted
a Risk Management Committee which ensures that the
Company has appropriate and effective risk management
systems which carries out risk identification, assessment
and ensures that risk mitigation plans are in place. The
Risk Management Committee identifies, from time to
time, various risks to which the Company is subject to
and has accordingly, aligned the concerned departments
to take the necessary mitigating steps. Risk management
has been interlinked with the annual planning exercise
where each function and business carries out fresh risk
identification, assessment and draws up treatment plans.

A Risk Management Policy in terms of provisions of
Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013 is in place
and is uploaded on the Company’s website i.e. https:/
www.kajariaceramics.com/pdf/Risk_Management_
Policy.pdf

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company believes in a strong internal control
framework, which is necessary for business efficiency,
management effectiveness and safeguarding assets.
The Company has a well-defined internal control system
in place, which is designed to provide reasonable
assurance related to operation and financial control.
The Management of the Company is responsible for
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ensuring that Internal Financial Control has been laid
down in the Company and that controls are adequate
and operating adequately.

Internal  Audit of the Company’s

carried out by the Internal Auditors and periodically

operations are

covers different areas of business. The audit scope,
mythology to be used, reporting framework are defined
well in advance, subject to consideration of the Audit
Committee of the Company. The Internal Auditors
evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control
system, its compliance with operating systems and
policies of the Company and accounting procedures at
all the locations of the Company. Based on the report
of the Internal Auditors, process owners undertake
corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations
and corrective actions thereon are placed before the
Audit Committee of the Company. The Internal Audit
also continuously evaluates the various processes being
followed by the Company and suggests value addition,
to strengthen such processes and make them more
effective.

Internal Controls with respect to financial
statements

The Company has an adequate system of internal
financial control in place with reference to financial
statements. The Company has policies and procedures
in place for ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Dev Datt Rishi, who is liable to retire by rotation,
offered himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting CAGM’). The Board recommends for his
re-appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The tenure of Mrs. Sushmita Singha as the Independent
Director of the Company will expire on 29th March,
2020. Subject to the approval of shareholders by way
of a special resolution, it is proposed to re-appoint Mrs.
Sushmita Singha as the Independent Director for the
second term of 5 (five) consecutive years effective from
30th March 2020 to 29th March, 2025 as recommended
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
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the Board of Directors of the Company. The requisite
disclosures/declarations including a declaration that
she meets the criteria of independence as provided
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Regulations 16(1)(b) & 25(8) of the Listing
Regulations, have been received. Mrs. Sushmita Singha,
is not debarred or disqualified from holding the office of
Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other such
statutory authority as required under the Circular dated
20th June, 2018 issued by BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Mr. Basant Kumar Sinha is not on the Board of the
Company, in any capacity, from the close of working
hours of 3l1st March, 2019 as he resigned from the
Board of the Company and his tenure as the Director-
Technical was also completed with effect from the close
of working hours of 31st March, 2019.

Mr. Ram Ratan Bagri ceased to be the Non-executive &
Independent Director of the Company with effect from
the close of working hours of 3lst March, 2019 as his
tenure as the Non-executive & Independent Director of
the Company was completed.

The Shareholders of the Company had approved, by
passing the Special Resolutions on 1th March, 2019,
through Postal Ballot:

¢ The continuation of Mr. Raj Kumar Bhargava and Mr.
Debi Prasad Bagchi as the Independent Directors
of the Company on/after 1st April, 2019 and till the
expiry of their existing tenure i.e. upto the conclusion
of 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the Calendar Year 2019 or upto 3lst July,
2019, whichever is earlier; and

¢ The re-appointments of Mr. Raj Kumar Bhargava and
Mr. Debi Prasad Bagchi as the Independent Directors
of the Company for the second term effective from
the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held in the Calendar Year
2019 or from 1st August, 2019, whichever is earlier
and upto the conclusion of the 36th Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in the Calendar
Year 2022.

All Independent Directors of the Company have given
declarations that they meet the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies



Act, 2013 read with the Regulations 16(1)(b) & 25(8) of
the Listing Regulations.

All Directors of the Company have also given declarations
that they are not debarred from holding the office of
Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such
statutory authority as required under the Circular dated
20th June, 2018 issued by BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Further, there is no change in the composition of Key
Managerial Personnel (except mentioned above) of the
Company.

Performance Evaluation

The Board has, on recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and in line with the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company,
carried out an annual performance evaluation of the
Board as a whole, its Committees and all Directors
including the Chairman.

The manner in which the evaluation has been carried
out has been explained in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

On the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board has framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors,
Senior Management including Key Managerial Personnel
and other Senior Management and their remuneration.
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy includes the
criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes,
independence, etc. is placed on the Company’s website,
ie. https./www.kajariaceramics.com/pdf/nomination_
remuneration_policy.pdf. During the year under review,
this Policy has been revised (effective from April 1, 2019)
in accordance with the amended provision of the Listing
Regulations.

Details of remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment  and Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is stated in Annexure-4 which
forms part of this report.

Remuneration  of
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Statutory Audit

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration Number 001076N/N500013), the
Statutory Auditors of the Company has given reports on
the financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 3l1st March, 2019, which forms part of the
Annual Report. There is no qualification, reservation,
adverse remark, comments, observations or disclaimer
given by the Statutory Auditors in their reports. There
were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
had been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM’) of
the Company held on August 10, 2017, for a period
of five years effective from the conclusion of the 3lst
AGM of the Company held on August 10, 2017 upto the
conclusion of the 36th AGM of the Company, subject to
ratification by the shareholders of the Company at each
AGM of the Company.

The shareholders of the Company had, at the 32nd AGM
of the Company held on August 27, 2018, approved that
the annual ratification of appointment of M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, for their
remaining term shall be done, if so required under the
Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, now does not require the said annual
ratification of the Statutory Auditors of the company.

M/S Walker Chandiok & Co LLP. Chartered Accountants,
are eligible to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the
company for remaining term in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made thereunder and applicable laws.

Secretarial Audit

PursuanttotheprovisionsofSection204 ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s
Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries, Delhi
were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors, to undertake
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended
3lst March 2019. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is
annexed herewith as Annexure-5.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse
remarks, comments, observations or disclaimer made

by the Secretarial Auditors in their report.
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Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder:

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 is
annexed herewith as Annexure- 6.

Compliance of the Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied
with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standard
on meetings of the Board of Directors (‘'SS-1") and the
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘'SS-2") issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and
Investments

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments,
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Notes Nos. 6, 7, 34

to the Financial Statements.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings & outgo

The particulars relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo as required to be disclosed under the Companies
Act, 2013 are provided in Annexure-7 to this report.

Meetings of Board

The Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (six)
times during the financial year 2018-19 on 8th May, 2018,
24th July, 2018, 24th September, 2018, 25th October,
2018, 18th January, 2019 and 30th March, 2019. Details
of the meetings of the Board of Directors held during
the financial year 2018-19 and attendance thereof is
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The Composition of Audit Committee is disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report. All the recommendations
made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the
Board.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for the
Directors and Employees of the Company by adopting
the Whistle Blower Policy to report about the genuine
concerns, unethical behaviour, fraud or violation of
Company’s Code of Conduct. During the financial year
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2018-19, this Policy has been revised (effective from April
1, 2019) as per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (including amendments thereto) by
including a provision for making aware the employees
to report leak/suspected leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information with respect to the Company. The
Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the website
of the Company i.e. https:/www.kajariaceramics.com/
pdf/whistel_blowing_policy.pdf

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain of cost records
as per sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal), Act, 2013

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of
Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. This Policy may be accessed on the Company’s
https://www.kajariaceramics.com/pdf/
prevention_of sexual harassment_at workplace.pdf

website i.e.

Complaints Committee has been set up
regarding
harassment. All employees (Permanent, Contractual,
Temporary and Trainees) are covered under this Policy.
The Company has not received any sexual harassment

complaints during the year 2018-19.

Internal

to redress complaints received sexual

Particulars of Employees

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read
with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in
respect of employees of the Company is attached as
Annexure-8 to the Directors Report.

Deposits

The Company did not invite/accept any deposit within
the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and the rules made thereunder.

Significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals

There is no significant and material order passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company’s operations in future.



Cautionary Statement

Statements in this ‘Director’s Report’” & ‘Management
Discussion and Analysis’ describing the Company’s
objectives, projections,

estimates, expectations or

predictions may be forward looking statements
within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could
make difference to the Company’s operations including
raw material/ fuel availability and its prices, cyclical
demand and pricing in the Company’s principle markets,
changes in the Government regulations, tax regimes,
economic developments within India and the countries
in which the Company conducts business and other

ancillary factors.

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

The Directors take this opportunity to express their
deep sense of gratitude to the Banks, Central and State
Governments and their Departments and the Local
Authorities for their continued guidance and support.
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Your Directors would also like to record its appreciation
for the support and cooperation your Company has
been receiving from its suppliers, dealers, business
partners and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation
to the employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and
unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the

Company to remain as industry leader.

And to you, our shareholders, we are deeply grateful
for the confidence and faith that you have always
reposed in us.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ashok Kajaria

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10th May, 2019

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00273877
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ANNEXURE - 3

ANNUAL REPORT ON
CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the weblink to CSR policy and project and programs:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
Company has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (‘\CSR Policy’) which is uploaded on the website of
the Company i.e. https://www.kajariaceramics.com/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf

Your Company strives to make difference in the lives of people with a special focus on local / neighbouring areas.
Your Company has implemented various CSR programmes / projects which made positive impacts mainly in the
areas of health, sanitation, conservation of natural resources, sports, promoting education and rural development.
The CSR programmes initiated by the Company includes taking steps for preventive health care, Swachh Bharat,
constructing sanitation facilities in the schools, etc. near the manufacturing facilities, contributing to the education
and social economic development of under privileged children and rural area development. These CSR initiatives
are implemented directly and through various trusts/ societies / NGOs.

2. The composition of CSR committee:
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report for the composition of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (‘'CSR Committee’) of the Company.

3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years:
3384.53 Crores

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):
R7.69 Crores

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2018-19:

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year T7.69 Crores
b) Total amount spent during the financial year 34.86 Crores
c) Amount unspent, if any %2.83 Crores
d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: R in Lakhs)
SI. CSR Project Sector in which Projects or Amount Amount spent Cumulative Amount
No. or activity the project is Programs outlay on the projects expenditure spend direct
identified covered (1) Local area or (budget) or programs up to the or through
other project or sub-heads: (1) reporting implementing
(2) Specify the state programs direct period agency*
and district where wise expenditure
project or programs on projects or
was undertaken programs (2)
overheads
1 Swachh Cl-i.- Sikandrabad (U.P.) 70.00 51.62 51.62 Direct
Bharat: Sanitation Gailpur 70.00 55.60 55.60
Construction (Rajasthan) 10.59 10.59
/ Renovation Malootana 50.00
of Toilets in (Rajasthan)
Government
Schools/

Institution, etc.
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R in Lakhs)
SI. CSR Project Sector in which Projects or Amount Amount spent Cumulative Amount
No. or activity the project is Programs outlay on the projects expenditure spend direct
identified covered (1) Local area or (budget) or programs up to the or through
other project or sub-heads: (1) reporting implementing
(2) Specify the state programs direct period agency*
and district where wise expenditure
project or programs on projects or
was undertaken programs (2)
overheads
2 Social Relief Cl-i- 170.00 131.69 131.69 Direct/
Preventive Through
Health Care, Trusts
Eradicating
poverty and
malnutrition
3 Safe Drinking Cl-iv- 70.00 4770 4770 Direct /
Water Conservation Through
of natural Trusts
resources
4 Education Cl-ii- 230.00 146.74 146.74 Direct /
Promoting Through
Education Trusts
5 Sports Cl- vii- 50.00 17.00 17.00 Through
Development Promoting Trusts
Sports
including
training
6 Rural Cl- x- 59.00 24.60 24.60 Direct /
Development Rural Through
Development Trusts
Projects /
activities
Grand Total 769.00 485.54

Some CSR activities have been carried out directly and some through support to several other Non-Government
Organization, Trust and Charitable institutions.

6. Reason for not spending the prescribed 2% amount:
The Company has incurred CSR expenditure of ¥4.86 Crores during the financial year 2018-19, being about 63.20%
of ¥7.69 Crores, to be spent during the financial year 2018-19. The shortfall of 36.80% in the required expenditure
on CSR was due to non-identification of appropriate projects/programmes as the Company is looking for a long-
term projects/programmes which will benefit to the society at large in line with the intend of laws for which CSR
provisions have been made in the statute.

7. Responsibility Statement:
We hereby affirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives &
policy of the Company.

Ashok Kajaria Sushmita Singha
Place: New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director Chairperson, CSR Committee
Date: 10th May, 2019 (DIN: 00273877) (DIN: 02284266)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 W 47



ANNEXURE - 4

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE
OF REMUNERATION

UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 AND RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

I.  Ratio of remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of Employees of the Company
for the financial year 2018-19, the percentage increase in remuneration of Chairman & Managing Director, Joint
Managing Directors, Executive Director, Company Secretary and CFO during the financial year 2018-19:

Sl. Name of Director / KMP Designation Ratio of Remuneration Percentage increase in
No. of each Director to Remuneration
median remuneration of
employees
1 Mr. Ashok Kajaria Chairman & Managing 92:1 9.22%
(DIN: 00273877) Director
2 Mr. Chetan Kajaria Joint Managing Director 1011 (33.05%)
(DIN: 00273928)
3 Mr. Rishi Kajaria Joint Managing Director  101:1 (33.05%)
(DIN: 00228455)
4 Mr. Basant Kumar Sinha$ Director - Technical 16:1 8.35%
(DIN: 03099241
5 Mr. Ram Chandra Rawat  COO (A&T) & Company Not Applicable 9.08%
(FCS 5101) Secretary
6 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal CFO Not Applicable 10.91%

$ Mr. Basant Kumar Sinha is not on the Board of the Company, in any capacity, from the close of working hours
of 3lst March, 2019 as he resigned from the Board of the Company and his tenure as Director-Technical was also
completed with effect from the close of working hours of 31st March, 2019.

Note:
The Non-executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees only. The detail of remuneration of
Non-executive Directors is provided in Corporate Governance Report and is governed by the Nomination and

Remuneration Policy, as stated herein below. The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase for Non-executive
Directors’ remuneration is, therefore, not considered for the purpose above.

SI. Particulars Details
No.
1 % increase in the median remuneration of employee 12%
in the financial year 2018-19
2 Total number of permanent employees on the rolls of 2588
the Company as on 3lst March, 2019 (on standalone
basis)
3 Average percentile increase in the salaries of Average percentile increase in the salaries of

employees excluding managerial personnel during
financial year 2018-19 and its comparison with the
percentile increase in remuneration of Executive
Directors and justification thereof

employees excluding managerial personnel during
financial year 2018-19 was 11.8%. Whereas, there was
Nno average increase in remuneration of Executive
Directors.

[1l. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
Remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board

Ashok Kajaria
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 00273877)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10th May, 2019
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REMUNERATION POLICY

1. PREAMBLE

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of Kajaria
Limited (‘the Company’) was originally
formulated pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (‘the
Act’) read with provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the SEBI's
Notification dated May 9, 2018 including amendments/
modifications thereof (the ‘Listing Regulations’) and
revised in accordance with the provisions the Act and
the Listing Regulations.

Ceramics

This Policy is designed to attract, motivate, improve
productivity and by creating a
congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives,

retain  manpower,

personal growth and team work, and inculcating a
sense of belonging and involvement, besides offering
appropriate remuneration packages and superannuation
benefits. The Policy reflects the Company’s objectives
for good corporate governance as well as sustained
long term value creation for shareholders.

This Policy applies to Directors, Senior Management
including Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMPs’) of the
Company.

2. OBJECTIVES

* To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified
to become Directors and persons who may be
appointedin Senior Management and Key Managerial
positions.

e To determine remuneration based on the Company’s
size and financial position, cost of living, and trends
and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer
companies, in the tile industry.

e To carry out evaluation of the performance of
Directors, as well as Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management Personnel.

* To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure
long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

3. DEFINITIONS

* The ‘Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder, as amended from time to time.

« The ‘Board’” means Board of Directors of the
Company.

* ‘Director’ means a Director appointed to the Board
of the Company.

* ‘Independent Director’ means a Director referred
to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

* ‘Key Managerial Personnel’inrelation to a Company
means:

o The Managing Director / Joint Managing
Director / Chief Executive Officer or Manager and
in their absence, a Whole-time Director;

o Chief Financial Officer;
o Company Secretary; and

o Such other officer(s), as may be prescribed.

‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’ or
‘Committee’ shall mean a Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the

Listing Regulations.

‘Policy’ means Nomination and Remuneration Policy of
the Company.

‘Senior Management’ shall mean officers/personnel of
the Company, who are members of its core management
team excluding Board of Directors and this shall
comprise all members of management one level below
the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Whole-
time Director (including Chief Executive Officer, in case
he is not part of the Board) and shall also include the
Company secretary and Chief financial officer of the
Company.

4. APPLICABILITY
The Policy is applicable to:

¢ Directors (including Independent Directors);

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 B 49



*  Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMPs’); and

* Senior Management

5. CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee will be appointed by the Board and the
Committee will comprise of three or more Non-executive
Directors out of which not less than one-half shall be
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee
shall be an Independent Director. The Chairman
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall be present at every Annual General Meeting or
may nominate some other member to answer the
shareholders’ queries. The Chairman of the Company
may be appointed as a member of the Committee.

The Board may re-constitute the Committee, whenever
required, to comply with the provisions of the Act,
Listing Regulations and other applicable statutory
requirements.

6. ROLES OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Committee will, inter-alia,
include the following:

1. Identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
Director’s performance;

2. Formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel and other employees;

3. While formulating the policy as above said, to ensure
that:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run
the company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks;
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(c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management (one level
below the functional heads including the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer)
involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

Recommending the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management
including the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer;

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board of Directors of the Company;

To extend or continue the term of appointment of
Independent Director, on the basis of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors;

Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

To formulate the detailed terms and conditions of
the Kajaria Ceramics Employee Stock Option Plan
2015 (‘ESOP Plan 2015") including the following:

a. issuing and allotment of equity shares [including
share certificate(s)] of the Company to the ESOP
holders and all matters related thereto, from time
to time, pursuant to the ESOP Plan 2015;

b. signing, execution and submission of necessary
documents/papers for the listing of equity shares
of the Company with the stock exchanges or
other concerned authority(ies) and all matters
related thereto;

c. making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the
number of options and to the exercise price, in
case of rights issues, bonus issues and other
corporate actions;

d. approval of list of employee(s) of the Company
and/or its subsidiary(ies) [including gquantum of
ESOP grant] to whom ESOP options are to be
granted under ESOP Plan 2015;

e. determining the procedure for winding up of the
ESOP Plan 2015;

f. other matters which may be relevant for
administration of ESOP Plan 2015, from time to time.



g. To do all other acts as may be delegated by the
Board of Directors of the Company or prescribed by
law, from time to time.

7. POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMPs AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient /
satisfactory for the concerned position.

2. The Company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as Managing Director/
Whole time Director, who has attained the age of 70
years provided that the term of the person holding
this position may be extended beyond the age of
seventy vyears with the approval of shareholders
by passing a special
explanatory statement annexed to the notice for
such motion indicating the justification for extension
of appointment beyond seventy years.

resolution based on the

3. The Company shall not appoint a person or continue
the Directorship of any person as a Non-executive
Director who has attained the age of 75 years unless
a sp